FINAL

MINUTES OF THE MEETING
of the
HARRIS CHAIN OF LAKES RESTORATION COUNCIL

August 1, 2008
The regular meeting of the Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council (Council) was held at 9:00

AM on August 1, 2008 at the Lake County Board of County Commissioners’ (BOCC)
Chambers, 315 West Main Street, Tavares, Florida.

Members Present Members Absent

Hugh (Dave) Davis Il, Chairman Keith Farner

Skip Goerner, Vice Chairman Don Nicholson

Rick Powers, P.G., Secretary Edward M. Schlein, M.D.

Robert Kaiser, P.E.
Richard Royal
Jon VanderLey

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Dave Davis called the meeting to order at 9:02 AM.

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

An Invocation was given by Councilman Bob Kaiser, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.
3. ROLL CALL

Chairman Davis called roll. Councilmen Keith Farner, Don Nicholson, and Ed Schlein were
absent.

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chairman Davis called for a discussion of the June meeting minutes. Councilman Richard Royal
suggested a few minor edits. The edits were accepted and the June meeting minutes were
approved by unanimous vote.

5. PRESENTATIONS /ACTION ITEMS

Discussion of Hunter Environmental Consulting, Inc. (HEC) invoice for consulting services
for July 2008

Chairman Davis explained that Lake County had notified the Council’s Recording Secretary
Patrick Hunter that the [audio] recording of the monthly meetings was being changed from a tape
system to a [digital] DVD system. In an informal vote, the Council agreed that Mr. Hunter



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 2 of 23

should attend the training session [on the new system] and be paid for his attendance. Chairman
Davis said it had come to his attention that a bill was submitted [by Mr. Hunter] to the St. Johns
River Water Management District (SJRWMD) and they denied payment.

Mr. Hunter said it was his understanding the District requested Nancy Christman (SJRWMD)
review the previous meeting video, during which she observed no mention of the issue and no
formal vote was taken by the Council.

Nancy Christman, Senior Intergovernmental Coordinator with the SIRWMD notified the
Council that she was informed by the SIRWMD Contracts Division that they had denied the
invoice because there is no provision for this type of event, under the terms of the Hunter
Environmental Services, Inc. (HEC) contract.

Chairman Davis asked if they [SJRWMD Contracts Division] had informed Ms. Christman what
needs to be done in order to pay the invoice. Ms. Christman said they had not.

Councilman Rick Powers said he believes that in order for Mr. Hunter to fulfill his mission [as
Recording Secretary], it would be a requirement for him to attend the training. He asked if a
change order would be required. Ms. Christman said she had suggested submitting a
“Requisition After the Fact” which was not well received as an option.

Mike Perry, Executive Director of the Lake County Water Authority (LCWA) said they also
provide funds for the Council and suggested the easiest way to handle this situation would be to
have Mr. Hunter submit the invoice to the LCWA and he will approve payment. He then asked
the amount of the invoice and Ms. Christman said $1,450. Mr. Perry agreed to the amount.

Councilman Kaiser made a motion that the Council approves the $1,450 HEC invoice for the
extra duty required to learn the new system. Vice (V.) Chairman Skip Goerner seconded the
motion, which was approved by unanimous vote.

Mr. Hunter then informed the Council that the microphones with the new system are extremely
sensitive and are able to pick-up low level conversations of both the Council and members of the
public. He also informed the Council the video recording of the meeting still utilizes the existing
microphones and the Council must continue to speak directly into them.

New Earth Industries: Device to Collect Trash and Gas/Oil from Stormwater Runoff

Dr. Dan Canfield of the University of Florida (UF) and Chairman of the Technical Advisory
Group (TAG) to the Council explained that during his duties with Florida LAKEWATCH, he
has observed the primary complaints of lakefront property owners are about trash and gas/oil
entering their lakes from stormwater runoff. He said that he had recently learned about a new
method to manage these problems and then introduced Sheron and Mark Maksimowicz.

Mark Maksimowicz, V. President of New Earth Industries provided handouts describing the
Watergoat™ collection system. Copies of the handouts are provided in Attachment 1 of these
minutes. Mr. Maksimowicz explained the Watergoat™ is a very simple system that collects
trash and they offer one for light weight use and another for heavy stormwater velocities. He
said in St. Petersburg it has been calculated that in the first ten minutes of a storm, between
seven and 18 pounds of trash can be discharged through a single stormwater pipe outfall and into



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 3 of 23

a water system. Mr. Maksimowicz explained the volume of trash is a big problem that many
municipalities attempt to manage with baffle boxes, among other methods. He said the problem
with baffle boxes is they have to be cleaned out and unfortunately most municipalities don’t have
the funds to properly maintain them.

Mr. Maksimowicz went on to say that a Watergoat™ for a large outfall costs approximately
$1,000 and can be maintained (cleaned out) with a pool sweeper. He said the system is tried and
tested, and if these systems are installed by a local government and they cannot maintain them;
his company could do so for a nominal fee. Mr. Maksimowicz added if he hired to maintain
them, he would provide a written report of the volume and nature of the trash removed.

Councilman Powers asked how wave action affects the floating barriers. Mr. Maksimowicz
explained that these systems have been installed at outfalls along seawalls in the Gulf of Mexico
and they can handle two to three foot waves. He also said the systems are designed to move up
and down with changes in water levels.

Councilman Powers asked what happens to the trash that sinks to the bottom. Mr. Maksimowicz
explained that the system has a floating curtain that generally holds the trash in a small area. He
said according to the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWCC), the curtain
cannot be secured to the bottom because it would be a hazard to wildlife.

Councilman Powers asked what the frequency of maintenance would be. Mr. Maksimowicz said
he recommends once per week and the cost for his company to clean them out is $100 for the
first unit and then $10 for each additional unit on a single lake.

Councilman Kaiser asked what happens with the trash that is removed during cleaning. Mr.
Maksimowicz said ideally it would be placed in a dumpster supplied by the municipality for
disposal in a landfill. He explained that a petroleum absorbing sock which can be placed in the
floating boom will soak up and oil or gas that is discharged through the stormwater structure.
Mr. Maksimowicz said the material inside the sock binds with the petroleum products and is
approved for disposal in municipal landfills.

V. Chairman Goerner asked how long the [chemical] boom lasts. Mr. Maksimowicz said the oil
boom is a new feature, so he doesn’t have much data on how long they last and how much it
costs to replace them. He explained they are currently installing them at the Florida Aquarium in
Tampa and that will give them an idea as to how long they would last before needing to be
replaced and also the operating costs.

V. Chairman Goerner said this is a fantastic idea and he knows that tons of trash is removed from
the lakes each year.

Mr. Maksimowicz asked if he could be allowed to prepare a proposal for one of the local lakes in
order to give an idea of the costs for installing the systems and potentially maintaining them.
Councilman Powers suggested that Mr. Maksimowicz needs to speak with one of the local
municipalities because the Council has no control over the stormwater structures.

Councilman Kaiser cautioned that the actual maintenance costs could be higher if the trash
collectors are maintained by municipality workers.



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 4 of 23

Councilman Richard Royal asked if the LCWA has reviewed the cost share for these systems.
Mr. Perry said they have never restricted any of the local governments for any techniques or
procedures they have proposed. He explained the LCWA Board of Trustees (Board) is typically
concerned with the discharge of nutrients and although these systems don’t address them; the
board has funded baffle boxes in the past. Mr. Perry added that local governments would have to
make a presentation to the Board to be considered for funding.

V. Chairman Goerner said in order for the Council to make a recommendation to support the use
of these systems, they would need a report on the longevity of the chemical boom, amount of
trash removed, and other details as determined through historical use.

Chairman Davis asked if the chemical boom that collects the oil is floating or is it part of the
curtain and whether it can pick-up compounds other than hydrocarbons, like phosphorus and
nitrogen. Mr. Maksimowicz said it floats along the top and only picks-up hydrocarbons.

Dr. Canfield suggested that trustees from the Lake County Jail could be utilized to clean out the
collection areas, as a means to keep costs down. He believes the trash being discharged to the
lakes is an issue and this could work fairly fast [to start reducing the amount of trash].

Councilman Kaiser asked if there is any reimbursement to the county for the use of trustees. V.
Chairman Goerner said he is not sure, but recently Councilman Farner and himself went to Red
Howley’s [near the Burrell Lock and Dam] to do some aquatic plant harvesting. He explained
that Councilman Farner arranged for five trustees [from the Lake County Jail] who all worked
very hard and did a good job.

Councilman Jon VanderLey suggested that perhaps the Council could work with the various
jurisdictions responsible for the stormwater systems.

V. Chairman Goerner explained if the Council decides that this is an excellent way to preserve
the surface waters, then a recommendation could be made to the municipalities and to the
LCWA as a possible source of funding.

Mr. Maksimowicz said one of the things he specializes in is bringing homeowner groups and
municipalities together to maintain these systems. He added that his company does not make
much profit cleaning out the systems, it is just something they offer.

Councilman Kaiser said it would be best to establish a standard program for maintenance
because a lot of trash is discharged in the fist 20 minutes of a storm event via gutters and inlets,
which would need to be removed.

Councilman Royal suggested there must be some small lake in the county which is managed by a
municipality and the LCWA is involved in the stormwater program, where this technique could
be reviewed.

Dr. Canfield explained that Alachua County collects a Stormwater Tax with the real property tax
bills and possibly some of that money could be used for these systems.



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 5 of 23

V. Chairman Goerner said Lake County and the LCWA also collect Stormwater Taxes which are
often used to construct stormwater facilities that may include baffle boxes.

Dr. Canfield then introduced a demonstration of the hydrocarbon collection device saying it was
invented by the Germans in the 1930s to collect spilled oil and gas, so it could be reused. He
explained that it is currently used in California to cleanup oil and fuel spills.

Eric Schulz of the Florida LAKEWATCH organization provided a demonstration of the
petroleum absorbing material used in the chemical booms. He explained that to the best of his
knowledge, one pound of the polymer has the ability to soak up one pound of hydrocarbons. Mr.
Schulz then poured a small amount of oil onto some of the polymer which turned into a gel-like
material. He carried the mixture to each of the Council members for them to see.

Councilman Kaiser asked if the product had been approved by the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA). Mr. Schulz said yes and that the used material could be disposed in a landfill or
burned.

Dr. Canfield explained that the amount of the material [hydrocarbons] absorbed determines the
life-span of the boom. He said that checking the weight of the boom would indicate when it
needs to be replaced. Dr. Canfield also said the used material is utilized in both power plants
and asphalt plants, adding that this technology is a potential solution for gas and oil which comes
off the roadways and discharges into surface waters.

Chairman Davis asked if the absorbent material were used directly on a spill that occurred on
land and then carried to a lake by stormwater; would the petroleum remain bound to the material.
He also asked if it would float or sink. Dr. Canfield explained that hydrocarbons would remain
bound to the material and it floats.

Councilman Kaiser asked whether the saturated material could be burned. Dr. Canfield said that
in California it is burned in coal-fired [industrial] plants.

V. Chairman Goerner asked if the Council could review some history on the technology’s use
and/or visit a local lake where these systems are installed. Dr. Canfield explained he had
recently learned of this technology and doesn’t have any historical data. He said these systems
have been installed in Crescent Lake in Pinellas County; if the Council would like to view it. Dr.
Canfield noted that the Alachua County Fire Department uses the [absorbent material]
technology to manage oil spills.

Councilman Powers said he knows the product is used around the world to cleanup spills, but is
curious as to how well it works with low concentration [of hydrocarbons] diluted in stormwater.
Dr. Canfield said there is very little field data available however; the field tests he has preformed
in Gainesville indicate the material absorbs gasoline at low concentrations.

Public Questions and Answers

Len Baumgartner, member of the Restore Our Waterways (ROW) organization suggested that
perhaps “Adopt-A-Watergoat” groups could be formed to provide cleaning of the collection
areas. He believes the maintenance could be accomplished through community support and
participation.



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 6 of 23

Dr. Canfield said LAKEWATCH may be able to assist with cleaning or organizing a group, in
addition to local trustees which may be a good source of labor.

Bass Stocking Program at Lake Dora and Lake Griffin — Dr. Daniel Canfield, University of
Florida

Dr. Canfield provided handouts summarizing the Wild Adult Largemouth Bass Stocking
Research/Demonstration Project on Lake Griffin and a proposal to continue the Restoration of
the Economic Vitality of Lake Griffin and Lake Dora’s Largemouth Bass Fishery
Research/Demonstration Project — Phase V. Highlights of his presentation are provided below
and copies of the handouts are provided in Attachment 2.

Dr. Canfield explained:
- The Council has supported the UF bass stocking program since 2004

- Last winter over 4,600 fish were moved to Lake Dora
o0 Greater than 1,000 were 14 inches or larger
Over 300 were greater than 17 inches
The largest bass weighed 9.9 pounds
Fish sampling in May determined that 23% of the fish counted were stocked fish

O OO

- Economics indicate the stocked fish are valued at $500,000 to $1 million
- According to the State, the replacement value of the fish is $70,000

- Lake Griffin was stocked in years 2004 — 2007
0 The percentage of stocked bass sampled remained constant at 10%
o0 Many of the stocked bass have moved into the canals due to the improved habitat
0 The stocked bass are spawning and catch rates have improved

- Bass stocked at greater than five fish per acre in small lakes have affected the gizzard
shad populations

- Throughout 2004 — 2007 an average of $131,407 was spent annually stocking fish (See
Attachment 2)
o The $131,407 expenditure for restocking equates to a $230,000 return [on
investment]
0 A total of 13,933 fish have been stocked which equates to $1.219 million to $12.19
million in economic return to the local economy
o Dr. Canfield estimates there is a $12 return for every $1 spent on relocating bass

- Proposal to continue bass stocking (Attachment 2)
o Continue stocking Lake Dora and Lake Griffin for two more years; October 2008 —
September 2010
0 Relocate a minimum of 2,000 large mouth bass to each lake during each year
o Provide evaluation at the end of each year for this Research/Demonstration Project



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 7 of 23

o Total cost for two additional years is $225,000
- Artificial habitat would be needed while natural habitat improves
- Evaluation of this Research/Demonstration Project to date indicates it is successful

V. Chairman Goerner asked what the recovery rate was for Lake Dora. Dr. Canfield said that
from the May sampling data it was 23% and explained the fish survive, but the lack of [suitable]
habitat is a big issue that must be dealt with.

Councilman Powers asked if there has been any discussion saying the fishing isn’t better or the
stocking isn’t successful. Dr. Canfield said he is responding to comments made by Governor
Charlie Crist that stocking only benefits bass fishermen and who vetoed the Council’s latest
$300,000 Legislative funding request. Councilman Powers said it was his understanding of
comments made, that the fishing is a lot better.

V. Chairman Goerner said that working on habitat is important, but believes reconnection of the
marshes like Lowrie Brown would provide terrific habitat which would increase the [fish]
recruitment rate.

Dr. Canfield explained the habitat he is referring to involves the main part of the lake, where
creel counts continue to show low numbers of fish. He said that the would prefer not to stock the
lakes if there were habitat to support fish reproduction, but stressed that money is being made on
the stocking by bringing anglers to the lakes.

Councilman Royal asked what percentage of calls are for fish relocated from other lakes that
may not have moved on their own, noting that many of the anglers might not be calling. Dr.
Canfield said about 2% of the calls are for fish caught in other lakes.

Councilman Kaiser asked if there is a way the actual fiscal impact to the local economy
including motels, restaurants, bait and tackle shops, gas stations, and even sales tax [revenue] is
as a result of the fishing tournaments held on the lakes each year. He said this would be very
applicable to the subject of stocking.

V. Chairman Goerner said that all area hotels are full during the bass tournaments which indicate
there are positive economic impacts. Councilman Kaiser suggested the local merchants or
Chamber of Commerce could get involved by recording or providing information if patrons are
attending a tournament.

Dr. Canfield said the last economic study that he knew of was conducted by the FWCC in 1988
or 1989 and indicated an approximate $3 million per year impact to the local economy due to
fishing. V. Chairman Goerner said the impacts of the tournaments are obvious, especially when
you consider that eight years ago there was talk about the county giving away Hickory Point
because it was under utilized and a maintenance nightmare. He said nowadays you must call in
advance to get a reservation if you want to fish [launch a boat] during one of the tournaments.

Councilman Kaiser said it was his understanding that the Governor vetoed the funding request
because he perceived the stocking as only benefiting a select group of people [anglers].



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 8 of 23

Councilman Powers asked if the Council has any money to support the stocking program.

Mr. Perry explained the Council identified three areas of funding which have the following
balances:

- Revegetation of native vegetation ~ $184,100
- Control of exotic/invasive plants $105,150
- Planting cypress trees $ 18,750

$308,000

Mr. Perry said approximately $275,000 of the available funds are currently unencumbered.

V. Chairman Goerner said an additional $32,000 is encumbered for the FWCC [bass tracking]
telemetry equipment.

Dr. Canfield said the requested amount for two years of stocking is $225,000 or $112,000 for
one year.

Bill Johnson of the FWCC said there is no question the fisheries are worth a lot of money and
suggested the Council could set aside some money for a “red tag reward” program. He
explained this may be better than making “assumptions” about what percentage of people call in
[to report tagged fish] and possibly an expenditure of $10,000 would eliminate those
assumptions.

V. Chairman Goerner said he would be concerned if a reward is offered for reporting tagged fish,
that anglers may kill the fish in the process of removing the tag which is small and hard to read.
He also noted that the Council has never included a statement of economic benefit with their
funding proposals and they would do so with the next one.

Councilman Royal suggested that economic studies have been conducted by the Bass Anglers
Sportsman Society (B.A.S.S.) and others. V. Chairman Goerner said this is true and the
information needs to be included in the Council’s future funding proposals. He also noted that
fishing is a $125 billion industry nationwide.

Mr. Johnson explained the FWCC will continue to conduct creel surveys next year on lakes
Griffin and Dora, which includes a tag reward program for crappie in Lake Griffin. He added
that this year’s creel survey indicates the fishing effort for bass in Lake Dora has gone down,
even though the catch rate and number of bass caught both went up.

V. Chairman Goerner again expressed his concern that a tag reward program may result in the
needless death of bass.

Councilman Powers suggested that with the current financial and political climates in Florida,
the Council should fund the stocking for one additional year.

V. Chairman Goerner believes the Council should approve the funding because they had already
planned to continue stocking for two more years and they should not continue to maintain a



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 9 of 23

[funding] balance with the LCWA. Councilman Powers said there are other projects the Council
has agreed to fund.

V. Chairman Goerner said the stocking program has been very successful and then made a
motion to fund the UF bass stocking program with $225,000 for two years. Councilman Kaiser
seconded the motion.

Chairman Davis called for a discussion of the motion.

Dave Walker, Senior Project Manager with the SIRWMD explained that all of the Council’s
funding has been transferred to the LCWA and the District has a contract with the Water
Authority which outlines the use of the funds to include habitat restoration and other projects.
He said that contract expires at the end of this fiscal year [September 30™. He suggested a new
contract be written with an amended Scope of Work that reflects how the funds are being spent
and to extend the agreement for two additional years. Mr. Walker noted that the Council has
already used all of the funds originally set aside for bass stocking.

Chairman Davis asked for clarification on the transfer of funds from the LCWA to the UF. Dr.
Canfield explained that the UF has a contract with the LCWA for bass stocking which expires in
October. He said if the current contract expires, the university would have him prepare a new
one in which the UF cost of overhead would be increased from the 5% amount to 25%. Dr.
Canfield added that if his funding request was approved, the contract would remain in place on a
continuation basis.

Councilman Royal asked Mr. Perry if there is currently enough money available to continue the
stocking program for one more year. Mr. Perry explained that minus the funds for which the
Council has already taken action, there is a balance of approximately $275,000. He said if the
Council approves $225,000 for continuation of bass stocking, there would be approximately
$50,000 available for other projects. Mr. Perry also noted that under the current agreement, the
Council has expended the funds allocated for bass stocking; therefore the agreement would need
to be amended.

Councilman Powers said he is concerned that the Governor did not fund the Council and sent a
clear message. He also explained he does not want the Council to be known as the Harris Chain
of Lakes “Bass Stocking” Council and that they should fund other projects with the remaining
money. Councilman Powers said he supports bass stocking, but believes the Council could fund
one more year of stocking and then use some of their money for habitat restoration and other
projects they have not funded.

V. Chairman Goerner said the Council will submit a request for additional funding for habitat
restoration from the Legislature, although funding budgets are dependant on the economy. He
believes the current funds should be transferred for two additional years of bass stocking because
it is a successful program and it brings money into Lake County.

Chairman Dauvis called for a vote on the motion to provide $225,000 for two additional years of
bass stocking. V. Chairman Goerner and Councilman Kaiser voted to support the motion while
Chairman Davis and Councilmen Powers and Royal cast Nay votes.



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 10 of 23

Councilman Powers suggested that it would be important for the Council to let the reasons be
known in Tallahassee why it is important to continue the bass stocking program.

Councilman Royal suggested the Council obtain an economic report from B.A.S.S. and then
possibly obtain an opinion or economic adjustment of the report from a university, for inclusion
with the next funding request. V. Chairman Goerner agreed that including the economic
information will be important.

Councilman Royal made a motion to provide $112,000 funding for the UF bass stocking
program for one year, with the intent of funding the program for a second year if the funds
become available. Councilman Powers seconded the motion, which was then passed by
unanimous vote.

Dr. Canfield said that he will relocate 3,000 to 4,000 bass next year and tag them if the FWCC
provides the tags, but he would not be able to complete an economic study on bass stocking.

Mr. Johnson said there is a lot of economic information available including the creel survey last
year on Lake Dora which indicated a little over 2,000 man-hours of bass fishing, while the first
creel survey on the lake in 1977-78 indicated there were 20,000 man-hours spent fishing for
bass. He suggested that data like this confirms there have been big losses. V. Chairman Goerner
agreed and said he would discuss the matter with Mr. Johnson personally.

Councilman Royal asked if the creel surveys include talking with people fishing in canals
[around the lakes]. Mr. Johnson said not previously, but they are considering including the
canals at Lake Griffin in next year’s survey so they can review the data.

Mr. Johnson went on to say that he believes there is a lack of [suitable] habitat in the main part
of the lake which is why the fish are spawning in the canals.

Discussion of SJRWMD Budget for the Council — Chairman Dave Davis

Chairman Davis noted that a revised budget for the Council funding provided by the SIRWMD
includes $10,000, as has been previously provided by the District. A copy of that budget is
provided in Attachment 3.

Consideration of 2008-09 Budget Item for UF Contract to Update Council Website

Chairman Davis explained that Dr. Marilyn Bachmann had submitted a quote to continue
maintaining the Council’s website for an additional year for $1,800.

Councilman Kaiser made a motion to approve the quote which was seconded by Councilman
Powers. With no further discussion the motion was passed by unanimous vote. A copy of the
request from Dr. Bachmann is provided in Attachment 4.

Public Questions and Answers

Carolyn Dillon (ROW) suggested for part of an economic study, bass tournament organizers
could survey people who attend the tournaments as to how much they spend locally at hotels,



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 11 of 23

restaurants and the like, during events over a six month period. V. Chairman Goerner said that
tournament organizers provide that information whenever they request funding from local
agencies.

Mr. Hunter asked if any of the economic data would be available for inclusion in the annual
report. V. Chairman Goerner said he would put some information together for the report.

Chairman Davis questioned how the economic benefits affect Lake County; asking if 75 anglers
check into a local chain hotel or buy gas, doesn’t that mean more profit for the national owners
of the hotel and gas station. V. Chairman Goerner said that is true however, there is a local room
tax and gasoline tax that stays in the county. He also said that fees paid for fishing licenses
benefit the FWCC, which helps support programs to improve the local fisheries.

Agency Updates
Mr. Perry (LCWA) provided the following updates to the Council;

- The Lake Beauclair Nutrient Reduction Facility (NuRF) construction continues to be on-
track
0 The centrifuge which will be used to spin-out the alum floc and is an integral element
of the project has arrived
0 Operation of the facility is expected to begin in January 2009

- The Lake Beauclair Restoration Project
0 They are reviewing the use of Cell G of the Lake Apopka Marsh Flow-way (LAMF)
for a possible disposal site of the dredged material
o Due to the soil inversion project at the Lake Apopka North Shore Restoration Area
(NSRA), the dredged material will not be required at that site
0 The cost of pumping the dredged material to Cell G will be much lower than pumping
it to the NSRA
0 An estimated 1.2 million cubic yards (mcy) of dredge material will be moved
They are still considering use of the Genesis Dewatering System
o0 They currently have approximately $9.2 million available for the project which may
be sufficient to move forward

o

- The City of Apopka Consumptive Use Permit (CUP)

0 The CUP application continues to be in abeyance

0 The LCWA continues to review the permit conditions

0 The LCWA has sent a petition to the SJIRWMD requesting they begin the rule
making process to establish Minimum Flows and Levels for the Harris Chain of
Lakes (HCOL)

0 Charles Lee of the Florida Audubon Society has become involved in the CUP review
process

0 The next public discussion of the permit is September 9" and the LCWA may make
buses available if a large group would like to attend

o An administrative hearing has been requested by Lake County for issues surrounding
the Niagara Bottling Plant



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 12 of 23

Dr. Canfield provided a brief update to the Council;

The mechanical harvester was recently used to remove cattails on Haynes Creek.

0 Lake County trustees provided labor for the project

o0 Approximately one-half of the work was completed and the rest is scheduled for the
second week in September

0 The harvester is currently being repaired and will be available for other projects

o0 A Menzi muck remover would have been better suited for the work on Haynes Creek

V. Chairman Goerner notified the Council that Red Howley (owner of Spillway Park on Haynes
Creek) has contacted the Florida Legislature to request a meeting with the SJRWMD and LCWA
to discuss removing the sand bar near his property. He will notify the Council when a date for
the meeting is determined.

Mr. Johnson (FWCC) provided a brief update to the Council by discussing the results of the
recent creel survey conducted on Lake Dora.

Creel Survey in Lake Dora

o0 Fishing Effort decreased from 33,000 man-hours to 23,000 hours last year

Crappie harvest also decreased

Large mouth bass catches went up from approximately 400 to 900

The data include total fishing effort over the past four years

Mr. Johnson will send the data to the Council and will include the electrofishing
results.

O O0OO0Oo

Jason Dotson, a Biologist with the FWCC provided the following update of the Fish Attractor
Project to the Council;

Last month he met with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) and
determined the project would have an exemption in the permit to build as many 0.25 acre
attractors as they like, so long as they are at least 100 yards apart. Permitting attractors
one acre in size would be extremely difficult.

The new plan is to have five sites where there would be four, 0.25 acre attractors each.

The larger number of smaller attractors will provide more “edge effect” which increases
recruitment and improved fishing opportunity for anglers.

Waiting for bids from contractors before cost figures for the project can be presented.
Reviewing different shapes for the attractors to increase edge effect.

Will provide economic impact / benefit analysis as part of the project.

V. Chairman Goerner requested that Mr. Dotson try to have the costs available for presentation
during the September meeting Agency Updates. Mr. Dotson agreed.

Barbara Bess, a Watershed Management Coordinator with the FDEP provided the following
updates to the Council;



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 13 of 23

- She suggested that Cathie McGwier with Adopt-A-Lake could be contacted to possibly
organize Watergoat maintenance.

- The next meeting of the UpEer Ocklawaha River Basin (UORB) Technical Working
Group will be held August 25" at the Leesburg Cultural Center.
0 Issues to be discussed include street-sweeping credits and public education.
0 The Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLSs) program continues to move forward.

- Changes have been made to the Impaired Waters List and she could provide a link to the
website where that information is posted.

Dave Walker, a Basin Program Manager with the SIRWMD provided the following updates to
the Council;

- The SJRWMD recently met with the LCWA Board to discuss a dredging project to build-

up the NSRA, in an effort to reconnect to Lake Apopka.

0 The cost of the project in a 1988 study was estimated to be $800 to $900 million

0 Adjusted to 2008 the costs would be $1.4 to $1.5 billion

0 The Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) has provided a considerable
amount of funding to purchase land in the NSRA and will not allow either the
deposition of dredge material or reconnection of the wetlands to the lake, due to a 30-
year easement on the property

Councilman Royal asked if the original plan was to reconnect the restored marshes to Lake
Apopka; why the SIRWMD would enter into an agreement with the NCRS that would not allow
reconnection. Mr. Walker said there were no specific plans to reconnect the lake to the north
shore.

V. Chairman Goerner agreed with Councilman Royal saying that possibly the public has been
mislead because he believed the marshes in the north shore were being restored so they could be
reconnected to the lake. Mr. Walker explained that originally reconnection was considered as an
option, but changes in the plan over the past ten years and the bird mortality in 1999 — 2000
caused by pesticide contamination at the property, does not include reconnection.

Chairman Davis asked about the progress of the soil inversion project in the NSRA. Mr. Walker
said they have completed approximately 1,900 acres and an additional 2,100 acres are scheduled
for the next fiscal year, which will complete all the planned mechanical remediation for wetland
restoration.

Walt Godwin, Environmental Scientist VI with the SIRWMD, provided the following updates to
the Council;

- Water quality graphs were provided as handouts and are included as Attachment 5.
o0 Phosphorus concentrations have improved, most likely due to the increased rainfall

- Construction in the Harris Bayou has been completed
o0 Alum treatment in the bayou is complete



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 14 of 23

0 Phosphorus concentrations are below 100 micrograms per liter (ug/L), which are
much lower than the 400 pg/L when they began the project
0 Phosphorus concentrations should continue to decline

V. Chairman Goerner asked what the phosphorus concentration is in Lake Griffin. Mr. Godwin
said it is approximately 50 pg/L and continued with his update:

- Lake Apopka Marsh Flow-way (LAMF) Performance Data

Lake Apopka Marsh Flow-way Performance Summary

100+ u S,
. P
17 D S e e W | W, = O BT TRE,, S —
Target TSS removal = 80%; Average removal = 93% | oy W™ :n
i)
60

| Target P removal = 30%; Average removal = 30% l I|

204 cof |
|
04 =
Drawdown of B cells
=20 :
2004 Hurricanes —— TP
—8— TS5

a6 Stormwater, power outages ™

1/2004 7/2004 12005 7/2005 1/2006 7/2006 1/2007 7/2007 1/2008 7/2008

V. Chairman Goerner said information he has received from the LCWA indicates an average
phosphorus reduction of 8.4% over the past four years, while the average phosphorus
concentration entering the system is 130 parts per billion (ppb) and the average concentration
flowing out is 119 ppb. (ppb equals pg/L) He said this indicates the LAMF provides
approximately 10 — 12% reduction in phosphorus which is mostly in the particulate form. V.
Chairman Goerner also said there is a lot of dissolved phosphorus, which is the most readily
available form, in the water discharged.

V. Chairman Goerner requested the SIRWMD provide actual flow data for the flow-way and
said the results from the LAMF are very disappointing. He explained that the expected results
were important to meeting the goals of the TMDL program, which is also very disappointing. V.
Chairman Goerner noted the phosphorus concentrations for Lake Griffin since 1992, as outlined
in the graph provided by Mr. Godwin are more reflective of the amount of rainfall received than
of phosphorus reductions as a result of projects.



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 15 of 23

Lakes Apopka, Dora, and Harris Monthly and Annual TP-T Averages
0.35

030

Apaprih [Taardy Ay
@ & Destafis
oS rl il -
Ly
f‘i oo ]
E f
Ly
B onas o N [
| .. r
010 »
'y ¥
' h r § "" 4 v
A i
A | Fa \
ois \ A AL Y A 8- LS/ &

000

1992
1993

2001
2002
[k}
200
2006
2007
2008

1994

=3
=
™

Mr. Godwin explained that phosphorus loading to the lakes has been greatly reduced so the
spikes in phosphorus are less severe after large rain events. He said the phosphorus loading from
the Emeralda Marsh is down 80% as a result of the restoration.

V. Chairman Goerner said the spikes seen in the graph can be read like a calendar which
coincides with large rain events. He believes that since the farms in the north shore were
purchased [by the SIRWMD] prior to 1998, the majority of the low phosphorus concentrations
appear to result from periods of increased rainfall.

Councilman Royal noted that farms around Lake Griffin actually ceased operation several years
prior to 1998. V. Chairman said he recalls when the Emeralda Marsh flow-way began operation,
there were huge spikes in phosphorus and the water being discharged to Lake Griffin smelled
like sewage.

Mr. Godwin explained that the SIRWMD did not have control over the discharges from several
of the sites in the early 1990s. He said in the late 1990s they built water control structures at
Long Farm, Eustis Muck Farm and others which had the highest phosphorus concentrations. He
added that the District only recently had the financial resources to control the flows.

Mr. Godwin explained that the major phosphorus contributions to Lake Griffin are through
Haynes Creek via Lake Eustis and currently the phosphorus concentrations in that lake are high
due to the drought conditions. He said because the rainfall has been low, the residence time has
increased which allows for more time mixing and greater uptake of phosphorus.

V. Chairman Goerner asked if the resuspension of phosphorus may also be an issue. Mr.
Godwin explained that would not be as big an issue in lakes like Griffin and Eustis as it is in
Lake Apopka, which currently has an average depth of approximately 2.5 feet.



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 16 of 23

Councilman Powers said one thing to understand is that controlling discharges of stormwater
from such a large area takes a long time to rebuild the infrastructure in order to manage and treat
the runoff. He explained that managing discharges from point sources is much easier than from
non-point sources like stormwater. Councilman Powers agreed that Lake Apopka is a huge
problem even though the farms have been taken off-line, however; there is a large sink of
nutrients in the sediments of the lake. He said the best thing for that lake may be large rain
events to flush the nutrients out.

V. Chairman Goerner believes the information given by the SIRWMD is often misleading. He
recalls the estimated reduction of phosphorus by the LAMF was 40% and even with the use of
alum treatment, it discharges 90% of the available phosphorus.

Councilman Royal reminded the Council they did not support the LAMF in their 2007 annual
report and it is up to the Legislature to discuss its continued operation with the agencies
involved.

Mr. Godwin again said he would provide the flow data prior to the September Council meeting.

Chairman Davis thanked Mr. Godwin for his updates.

6. OTHER PUBLIC COMMENTS

Chairman Davis made a call for additional public comments.
Dr. Canfield expressed his opinions of the restoration efforts on Lake Apopka;

e He noted the concentrations of phosphorus are currently going up due to resuspension,
when an April 2008 publication by the SIRWMD says they are going down.

e The original proposal by the SIRWMD said it would remove 30,000 kilograms of
phosphorus per year and Lake Apopka would be restored in 60 years.

e At one point in 2006 the flow-way achieved 30% reduction in phosphorus which meant
that 70% of mostly dissolved phosphorus was returned to the lake.

e The LAMF [at times] discharges water with Dissolved Oxygen (D.O.) concentrations
below State standards.

e According to a paper by Dr. Roger Bachmann (UF, 1999), it would take the LAMF 300
years to remove the fluid mud in Lake Apopka and 600 years to remove the low density
material. The LAMF works like a low-gradient dredge which may be able to restore the
lake over the next 300 years.

e 1In 1986, Dr. Canfield was told it was the intent of the Legislature to purchase the muck
farms, restore the marshes, and reconnect them to the lake; saying they would act like a
“kidney.” An agreement with the NRCS now says they cannot reconnect the marshes to
the lake.

e According to another paper by Dr. Bachmann (UF, 2001), the LAMF would be able to
remove 75 grams of suspended sediments and 0.2 gram of phosphorus per cubic meter of
lake water, at a phosphorus concentration of 200 pg/L.



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 17 of 23

e Operational costs of the flow-way are approximately $600,000 per year and if it took an
additional 54 years (as proposed by the SIRWMD), an additional $32 million will be
spent on that project.

e Annual expenditure (by the SJIRWMD) for gizzard shad harvesting is $900,000 per year
which is an additional $48 million over the next 54 years. Dr. Canfield does not see the
benefit to gizzard shad harvesting.

In conclusion Dr. Canfield expressed his opinion saying, the efforts of the SIRWMD to restore
Lake Apopka have been a total failure that will never restore the lake. He said that so long as
they continue to target nutrients and not removing the fluid mud which is continually
resuspended, the lake will not be restored to the quality which was promised to the people.

Mr. Godwin offered the clarification that the data on the graphs are concentrations, not mass. He
explained that when the volume of water in the lake goes down, the mass of phosphorus does not
change like the concentration.

Dr. Canfield explained that when you examine concentration, one must also consider algae,
zooplankton, fish, and aquatic macrophytes (plants). He said even though he SIRWMD may
have reduced the amount of phosphorus entering the lake, they have not addressed the volume of
fluid mud on the bottom which would be necessary to restore the habitat and fisheries.

Mr. Godwin also noted that with the lowered water levels in Lake Apopka, there is exposed mud
which releases phosphorus and increases the concentrations.

V. Chairman Goerner said at times the LAMF has met the 30% reduction goals but at other times
there has been a net release of phosphorus. In his opinion, if one looks at the average overall
performance of the flow-way, it is disappointing.

No additional comments were made.

7. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

Chairman Davis made a call for Council member comments.

Councilman Powers expressed his opinion that the muck must be removed to restore Lake
Apopka and there is no political will to spend $500 million to dredge.

V. Chairman Goerner believes that it wouldn’t cost $500 million to dredge the lake because the
material doesn’t need to be moved very far; just pump it to the NSRA to build up the marshes
and reconnect them to the lake.

Councilman Powers disagreed saying this would be similar to other dredging projects that would
involve a lot of work. He agrees that removing the muck would help restore the lake but the
money to do so is not available, therefore they must look for other alternatives to get something
accomplished.

V. Chairman Goerner said he believes that true restoration of Lake Apopka could only be
achieved by removing the muck in areas that would benefit, and use it to build-up the marshes so



Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council Meeting — August 1, 2008
Page 18 of 23

they can be reconnected and then planting vegetation that uses phosphorus in both the marshes
and the lake. He suggested that if the $10 million per year being spent on Lake Apopka
restoration projects could be used for dredging, it would provide real restoration.

Councilman Royal suggested that dredging could be done utilizing the funds that are currently
spent pumping water on to and off of the marsh [NSRA]. He believes that without spending
more money than is currently being spent, the lake and marshes could be restored.

Councilman Kaiser asked if there is any agricultural value for the muck or if it can be used to
grow plants used to manufacture biofuels. Councilman Royal said there would be tremendous
opportunities of that nature, but it is a matter to be discussed by the Legislature.

In discussion of the Council’s Annual Report to the Legislature, Chairman Davis explained that
as in previous years; the individual Council members will review the draft report and make
comments, which will then be discussed at the meeting. He said once the comments or
suggestions are approved by the Council, they will not be revisited.

Chairman Davis requested that Mr. Hunter send out the “Pending Issues” email and summary of
the previous Council Funding Initiative prior to the September meeting. Mr. Hunter agreed and
reminded the Council that the draft report will be missing funding requests and other information
not yet discussed.

No further Council member comments were made.

Discussion of September 12, 2008 Meeting

Chairman Davis outlined the agenda items for the September 2008 meeting of the Council:
- Discussion of the fist draft of the Annual Report
- Discussion of this year’s funding expenditures

- Presentation of the Quantitative Analysis of Phosphorus Withdrawal from Lake Apopka
- SJRWMD

- Discussion of the UORB Funding Initiative — Dave Walker (SJRWMD)

8. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 12:15 PM.

Respectfully submitted by:

Chairman Dave Davis Il

Secretary Rick Powers



Attachment 1

Presentation of the

Watergoat™ Collection System

Mark Maksimowicz, V. President — New Earth Industries

August 2008






Attachment 3

SJRWMD Budget Contribution
to the Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council

Fiscal Year 2008 — 2009

Nancy Christman - SIRWMD

August 2008



Attachment 4

Proposal for Continuation of
Harris Chain of Lakes Restoration Council

Website Maintenance

Dr. Marilyn Bachman — UF

August 2008



Attachment 5

Water Quality Graphs

Harris Chain of Lakes

Walt Godwin - SIRWMD

August 2008



